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WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
CIN: L01132WB1927PLC005456
«Ashoka House”, 3A, Hare Strect, 3rd Floor,
Kolkata — 700001, Tel : 033 22622668, Fax: 033 22622669
Email :dcl@westcong.com, Website : www westcong,com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of WESTERN
CONGLOMERATE LIMITED will be held at its Registered Office at “Ashoka House”,
3A, Hare Street, 31 Floor, Kolkata 2700 001 on Wednesday, the 30 September 2020 at 10.00
AM. for the following purposes: -

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 and the
statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended as on that date together with the reports of
the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kanhaiya Lal Baid (holding DIN-00278135), who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment,

By Order of the Board
For Western Conglomerate Limited

Place : Kolkata i .
Date : 30% day of July, 2020 Pade s
Kanishka Sethia
Managing Director
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Notes:

WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a
Proxy to attend and vote thereat instead of himself. A Proxy need not be a member of
the Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s
Registered office situated at “Ashoka House”, 3A, Hare Street, 3 Floor, Kolkata-
700001 not less than forty-eight hours before the Meeting.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
special business are enclosed separately.

The Equity Share Transfer Registers will remain closed from 24® September 2020 to
30% September 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General
Meeting

Members are requested to notify change in their address.

Members are requested to intimate before hand to the Company query or queries, if
any, regarding these accounts / notice at least ten days before the meeting to enable
the management to keep the required information readily available at the meeting.

The information as required to be provided in terms of the SEBI’s (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 with the Stock Exchange
regarding the Directors who are proposed to be re-appointed is annexed.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide Circular
Ref No.MRD/Dop/Cir-05/2007 dated April 27,2007 made PAN mandatory for all
securities market transaction. Thereafter, vide Circular No.MRD/DOP/Cir-05/2009
dated May 20,2009 it was clarified that for securities market transactionsand off
market / private transaction involving transfer of shares in physical form of listed
Companies, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish copy of PAN Card
to the Company / RTA for registration of such transfer of shares.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Circular Nos.17/2011 and 18/2011 dated
April 21,2011 and April 29,2011 respectively, has undertaken a ¢ Green Initiative’
and allowed companies to share documents with its shareholders though electronic
mode. Members are requested to support this Green Initiative by registering /
updating their email addresses, in respect of shares held in physical form with
Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of
the Company.

Instructions for e-voting :

The business of this Meeting may be transacted through electronic system and the
Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means.

The process and manner of voting by electronic means, the time schedule including
the time period during which the votes may be cast and all necessary instructions and
information in this respect have been given in a separate sheet forming part of the
notice.
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The e-voting period commences Ol Sunday, 27" September, 2020 (09.00 AM. IST)
and ends on Tuesday 29% September, 2020 (5.00 P.M. IST). During this period,
Members of the Company, holding shares in physical form as on the close of working
hours on 23" September, 2020 (‘Cut-off date’) may cast their vote electronically. The
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting on Tuesday, 29"September,
2019 after 5.00 P.M. IST. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on Cut-off Date.

Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by
electronic means, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the closing working hours of Cut-off Date The
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall
be able to vote at the meeting through ballot/polling paper. Members who have
already cast their vote through remote e voting shall be able to attend the meeting but
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM

Mr. Rahul Jain, Practicing Chartered Accountant (Certificate of Practice
Number 304099), who has consented to act as the Scrutinizer and is available for the
purpose of ascertaining the requisite majority, was appointed by the Board of
Directors as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting process (electronically or
otherwise) for AGM in a fair and transparent manner and submit a consolidated
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast to the Chairman or a person authorized by
him in writing.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual
General Meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the
votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
employment of the Company and within a period not exceeding three working days
from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting make a consolidated
Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of
the Company or any other person authorized by him in writing.

The results of voting (including e-voting or otherwise) shall be aggregated and
declared on or after the Annual General Meeting of the Company. The results
declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of CDSL
www.evotingindia.com immediately and communicated to The Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited.

The facility of voting through ballot paper or polling paper shall also be made
available for the members at the Annual General Meeting who have not been able to
vote electronically and who are attending the Meeting. The members who have cast
their vote electronically would be entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting but
would not be permitted to cast their vote again at the Meeting. Once the vote is cast,
the member cannot change the same or recast the same again.

Once the vote is cast, the member cannot change the same or recast the same again.
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WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Please see the instructions below for details on e-Voting facility.

The voting period begins on Sunday, 27" September, 2020 (09.00.A.M. 'IST) gnd
ends on Tuesday, 29" September, 2020 (5.00 P.M. IST). During this period
shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 231 September, 2020, may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting

thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled
to vote at the meeting venue.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on Shareholders.

Now enter your User ID:

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on login.
If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com

and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be
used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and PhysiTa\
Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income
Tax Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as
well as physical shareholders)

*Members who have not updated their PAN with the

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence
number in the PAN field.

e In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the
applicable number of 0’s before the number after the first two
characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter
RA00000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat
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account or in the company records for the said demat account

Bank

Details or folio.

a) Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to
login. If the details are not recorded with the depository or
company please enter the member id / folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

ix.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

Xvil.

xviii.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly to the Company
selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password s to be also used
by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For the members holding shares in Physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the Resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant www.westcong.com On which you choose to
vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION™ and against the
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire
Resolutions.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the Voting done by you by clicking on “click here to
print” option on the Voting Page.

If demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User 1D and
the image verification code and click on forgot Password and enter the details as
prompted by the system.
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WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting
available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from
Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from

the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after 30th June
2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting
on your mobile.

Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporate.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helodesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s)
for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able
to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs™) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

By Order of the Board
For Western Conglomerate Limited

Place : Kolkata
Dated :30™ day of July, 2020

-

ot -
A Caita

Kanishka Sethia
Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING NOTICE

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Name of director

Mr. Kanhaiya Lal Baid

(Director)
DIN: 00278135
Date of Birth 10/11/1953
Date of Appointment 30/04/2007
Qualifications B.COM

Expertise in specific Functional areas

Accounts and Business Administration

List of Companies in which outside Directorship
held

U31905WB1991PTC050834

WESTERN WARE HOUSING PVT LTD
22/06/1994

U74140WB1994PTC062717
GIPSY MANAGEMENT PVT LTD
08/03/2002

Chairman/Member of the Committees of the Board
of other companies in which he/she is a Director

U74140WB1994PTC062717

Details of Shareholding (Both own or held by/for
other persons on a beneficial basis), if any, in the
Company

Ll

6000

Disclosure in terms of Clause 49(1V) (G) (ia) of the
Listing Agreement: Disclosure of relationships
between directors inter-se.

-

NA

Places : Kolkata
Dated : 30% day of July, 2020

By Order of the Board
For Western Conglomerate Limited

Kanishka Sethia
Managing Director



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
CIN : L01132WB1927PLC005456
“Ashoka House”, 3A, Hare Street, 3% Floor,
Kolkata — 700001, Tel : 033 22622668, Fax: 033 22622669
Email : dcl@westcong.com, Website : www.westcong,com

Attendance Slip

(To be presented at the entrance)

Folio No.: iDP ID No.: Client ID No.:
Name of the Member : Signature :
Name of the Proxy holder : Signature :

Number of shareholding:

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at Ashoka
House, 3A, Hare Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata — 700001, on Wednesday, The 30™ September, 2020 AT 10.00
AM.

1.  Only Member/Proxyholder can attend the meeting

2.  Member/Proxyholder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting.

..................................................................................................................................................................

Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id [ Folio No /Client ID [ DPID
I/We, being the member(s) of .......c.ccceueuuee. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
Name : [ E-mail Id:

Address: '

Signature , or failing him

Name : [ E-mail 1d:

Address:

Signature , or failing him

Name : | E-mail 1d:

Address:




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
CIN : L01132WB1927PLC005456
“Ashoka House”, 3A, Hare Street, 3™ Floor,
Kolkata — 700001, Tel : 033 22622668, Fax: 033 22622669
Email : dcl@westcong.com, Website : www.westcong,com

I Signature , or failing him J

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the company, to be held on the 30™ day of September, 2020 at 10.00 A.M. at “Ashoka
House”, 3A, Hare Street, 3 Floor, Kolkata - 700001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below :

Resoluti | Description Vote

on No.
For Against

Ordinary business

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31%

L. March 2019 and the statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended as on
that date together with the reports of the Directors and the Auditors
thereon

5 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Richa Mohta (holding DIN:

02330609), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for
re-appointment

Special business

To re-appoint Mr. Ranadhir Chakraborty (DIN: 00276149) as Non-

3. Executive Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive
years. (Special Resolution)
4 To re-appoint Mr. Rajendra Kumar Sethia (DIN: 02552528) as Non-
) Executive Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive
years. (Special Resolution)
Signed this day of 20 Affix
Revenue
Stamps
Signature of member Signature of Proxy
Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. The proxy need not be a member of the company.
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To

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members
WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Your Director have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report on the business and operation of
the company and the accounts for the Financial year Ended 31st March, 2020.

1.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/ PERFORMANCE OF THE
COMPANY :

The financial results for the year ended 31% March, 2020 and the corresponding figures for
the last year are as under :

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
Profit/(Loss) Before interest, Depreciation & Tax 24959645 6531150
Less : Finance Cost 14033077 27446082
Less : Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9103641 9268939
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1822927 (30183871)
Provision for taxation 1470000 -
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 352927 (30183871
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 352927 (30183871
DIVIDEND

In view of inadequate profit earned during the year under review, your Directors have
not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS :

The Financial year 2019-20 was a very difficult and disappointing year for the Indian
economy. Even before COVID-19 struck, India’s economy was on its way to register its
lowest GDP growth in more than a decade. Due to Covid-19, in many countries, businesses
are being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods of time.
Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social
distancing and closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to
businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. COVID-19 is significantly
impacting business operation of the companies, by way of interruption in production,
supply chain disruption, unavailability of personnel, closure / lockdown of production

facilities etc.

Against this backdrop the Company manufactured 16,45,742 Kgs of Tea during this year as
against 16,32,835 Kgs of previous year. Gross Turnover increased from Rs.22.66 Crore to
Rs. 25.67 Crore due to higher price realization per kg of tea. The average price realization
of tea for the year was Rs.156/- per kg as compared to Rs.139/- Per kg in the previous year.
There are no other significant changes that have occurred in the operation of the company.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS :
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company done during the year.
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5. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relate on
the date of this report due to Covid-19 was stated in para 3 of this report

6. RESERVE & SURPLUS:

No amount has been proposed to be transferred to General Reserve. The entire loss has

been transferred to profit and loss account.

7. MEETINGS:

The Company had twelve Board Meetings during the financial year under review..

The details are given below

EL NO | DATE OF | STRENGTH OF |NO OF DIRECTORS
BOARD BOARD ATTENDED THE
MEETINGS MEETING

1 31.05.2019 7

2 13.06.2019 7

3 10.07.2019 7

4 18.07.2019 7 6
5 14.08.2019 7 7
6 29.08.2019 7 6
7 06.11.2019 7 6
8 14.11.2019 7 7
9 15.01.2020 7 6
10 27.01.2020 6 5
11 14.02.2020 6 6
12 31.03.2020 6 5 J
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :

Mr. Rajendra Sethia has resigned from the directorship of the company during the year.
Mr. Kanhaiya Lal Baid retires by rotation being eligible for reappointment. The Company
has appointed Ms. Khushboo Saraf as Company Secretary and Mr. Kanishka Sethia as
Chief Financial Officer as KMP during the year.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR :
All Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down ws 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

STAKE HOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE :

Since the members of the Company are less than one thousands, the constitution of Stake
Holders Relationship Committee is not required pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178(1) the Company constituted nomination and
remuneration committee consisting of Mr. Girdhar Lal Chouhan, Mr. Ranadhir
Chakraborty and Mr. Kanhaiya Lal Baid. We confirm that remuneration paid to the
directors is as per the terms laid down and adopted in the policy of the company.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY
ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES :

Since the ceiling provided in Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not attracted as the
company has incurred losses during last couple of years, hence provision related 10
compliance of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY :
The Company has an effective risk Management policy which is capable of identifying
various types of risks associated with business, its assessment , risk handling, monitoring
and reporting . The Company has taken adequate insurance policy to cover risk of its bulk
assets and properties of the company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Control with reference to the
Financial Statements, such control have been assessed during the year. The Company
recognizes that any internal control framework, regular internal Audit and review processes
ensure that such systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.

M/s N C Bannerjee & Co., Chartered Accountants, have been re-appointed as internal
Auditor of the Company for the year 2019-20.

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY :
There is no subsidiary or Associate or Joint Venture company inexistence in pursuant to the
provision of Companies Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:
No significant & material orders were required to be passed by the regulators.

CHANGES IN SHARES CAPITAL:
The Company has not issued any Equity Shares/ or Other Securities during the year under
review.
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18. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Maroti & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. FRN322770E)
was appointed as statutory auditor in the last Annual General Meeting held on 26th
September, 2017 for a period of 5 years up to the financial year 2022. The requirement of
the ratification of the appointment of Statutory Auditors at every Annual General Meeting
has been done way by the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated 07th May, 2018,and hence the notice of ensuing Annual General
Meeting does not carry any resolution pertaining to ratification of appointment of Statutory
Auditors

19. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT :

In compliance to the provision of Section 704 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9
of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014 and
as per Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 08/02/2019 of SEBI and Regulation
24 A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. The
Secretarial Audit Report submitted by the Company Secretary in practice for the year
ended 31% March, 2020 annexed herewith marked as Annexure-11 to the report. The
qualifying remark and observation made by Secretarial Auditor are self explanatory does
not require further explanation.

Further as per aforesaid regulation of LODR the Company has also obtained Annual
Secretarial Compliance Report as per Annexure «A” of the above Regulation, herewith
marked as Annexure I1I.

20. AUDITORS' REPORT :
The Auditors' Report qualifications, Notes to Accounts and Auditors' remarks in their
report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

21. AUDIT COMMITTEE :
The constitution of Audit Committee is as per requirement of Regulation 18 of the LODR
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) and during the year it has met four times on
315 May 2019, 14" August, 2019, 14 November, 2019, 14" February 2020.

22. COST AUDITORS
In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies(Cost Records and Audit), Rules, 2014 presently the Company is not required to
get its cost record audited by a cost accountants in whole time practice.

23. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of annual return in
MGT-9 as a part of this Annual Report as Annexure v

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186 :
The Company has not given any Loan, Guarantees or made any Investment under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

DEPOSIT :
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES :

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length
basis. The details of the same are attach in Annexure-V as per prescribed form of AOC-2.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent,
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company did not
receive any complain during the year 2019-20.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO.

The reports on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 are enclosed
as Annexure to this report and marked as Annexure-I.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND :

In view of non declaration of Dividend since last more than 10 years, there is no
unpaid/unclaimed dividend lying with the company.

DIRECTORS'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
The Directors' Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (¢) of Sub- section (3) of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall state that

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

b. The director had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;

c. the director had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
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e. the directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate
and were operating effectively.

f. the directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

30. LISTING:
The shares of the company are listed in “The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.”. Further, the
company has paid listing fees up to the Financial Year 2019-20.

31. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
There is no requirement for the Company to file Corporate Governance Report pursuant to
Regulation 27 (2) of the Listing Regulations.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS :
The Directors place on record their since appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
extended by Bank, its employees, its investors and all other associates and look forward to
continue fruitful association with all business partners of the company.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
“Ashoka House” For Western Conglomerate Limited
3A Hare Street, 3™ Floor

Kolkata — 700 001 :-“

Kanishka Sethia
Chairman & Managing Director
Dated: 30" day of July, 2020 DIN : 00267232
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"Annexure-I"

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars of Conservation of Energy and Technology absorption in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the report of their Board of
Directors) Rules,2014 forming part of Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Appropriate steps have been taken for conservation, vis-a-vis improved utilization of energy by adopting
better technique and replacing old machinery and/or equipment where necessary.

(B) POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
1.  Electricity
(B) Purchased
Unit (in thousands) 1909.49 1869.23
Total Amount (Rs. In lacs) 183.77 174.70
Rate/Unit (Rs.) 9.62 9.35

(C) Own Generation
(i) Through Diesel Generator

Unit (in thousands) 53.89 71.35
Unit per Ltr. Of Diesel Oil 4.30 427
Total Amount (Rs. In lacs) 8.46 11.22
Cost/Unit (Rs.) 15.70 15.73
2. Coal
Quantity (kgs.) 1622394 1399831
Total Cost (Rs. in lacs) 158.12 122.88
Average Rate 9.75 8.78

3. Furnace Oil

Quantity (K. liters) 0.00 0.00
Total Cost (Rs. in lacs) 0.00 0.00
Average Rate 0.00 0.00

4. Other/Internal Generation

Consumption per Unit of Production

Products — Tea (in lacs kg.) 16.46 16.33
Electricity 1.16 1.14
Furnace Oil/LDO 0.03 0.04
Coal 0.99 0.88

Others 0.00 0.00
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(C) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D)

1 Specific Areas in which R & D carried out by the Company.

2 Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D.
3 Future Plan of Action
4 Expenditure on R & D

(a) Capital

(b) Recurring

(c) Total

(d) Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover
(D) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

1 Efforts, in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and
innovation

2 Benefit derived from as a result of the above efforts e.g. Product
improvements, cost reduction, product development, import substitution etc.
3 In case of imported technology (imported during the last S Years

renocked from the beginning of the financial year), following information
may be furnished :-

(a) Technology imported

(b) Year of Import

(c) Has technology been fully absorbed?
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where has not taken place, reasons therefore,
and future plans of action.

(E) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

1 Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports.
Development of new exports markets for products and services and export plan
Total foreign exchange used and earned.

Earning Rs.2,20,10,572/- (Previous Year Rs. 11,56,069/-)

Outgo Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

Place : Kolkata
Dated: 30th day of July, 2020

The company has no in house R
& D facility for improvement or
innovation and absorption and
Jor adaptation of technology.
for company’s products. The

Company subscribes to Tea.
Research Association and other
recognized institution within the
meaning of Section 35(1) of
Income tax Act and avails of the
from

technological ~ expertise

time to time.

Not Applicable

By Order of the Board
For Western Conglomerate Limited

'd
P S

Kanishka Sethia
Chairman & Managing Director
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[COMPANY SECRETARY]

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
CIN - LO1132WB1927PLC005456

(Formerly known as The Dibrugarh Co. Ltd.)
3A, Hare Street. Ashoka House

Kotkata — 700001

[ have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred as ‘“the
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a teasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on myv verification of the Company's books. papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers. agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion. the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2020 (*Audit Period”) complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2020, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(iiy The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act'):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011,

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Tnsider Trading) Regulations, 20135,

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009 (SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. 2009);- Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28 October 2014 - Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period;

Address:- 1 MAHM HALDER STREET, HAZRA, KOLKATA-700026. WEST BENGAL
@ +91 8229939141 / 7021007933 £< csnishamunka@yahoo.com




(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008-
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period:

(D) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period: and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buvback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period.

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (herewith referred as Listing Regulations).

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India: and

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India
Limited and the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by
the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulatioms to the Compary.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act. Rules. Regulations,
Guidelines. Standards, etc. mentioned above.

1 further report that:

s The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors and
Independent Directors without any key managerial personnel as required under Section 203 of the Companies
Act. 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

e Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exisis for secking and obtatning further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,

e  All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out with requisite majority.

1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules. regulations and
guidelines.

I further report that no Company Secretary has been appointed in the company and the process of appointment is
ongoing.

For NISHA MUNKA
Company Secrvetary

Nisha Munka
ipiweicing Company Secrelayy

| P

ACS: 49058
COP: 18201
UDIN: A049058B000591259

Place- Kolkata
Date- 30/07/2020

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.



‘ANNEXURE A’

To,

The Members

WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
CIN — LO1132WB1927PLC005456

(Formerly known as The Dibrugarh Co. Ltd.)
3A, Hare Street, Ashoka House

Kolkata — 700001

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is

{o express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate io obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. T believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the

company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the comphiance of laws, rules

and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For NISHA MUNKA
Company Secretary

. ka
Nisha MUuD¥® 1y secretary
Cop No-18201
ACS: 49058

COP: 18201
UDIN: A049058B000591259

Place- Kolkata
Date- 30/07/2020



pS  NISHA MUNEA

[COMPANY SECRETARYT

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

I, CS Nisha Munka, Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by
WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED (‘the Listed Entity”),

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
(c) website of the listed entity,
(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make

this certification,

for the year ended March 31, 2020 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the
provisions of:

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act’) and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued there under, and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA"), rules made thereunder and
the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India(*SEBI");

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder,
have been examined, include:

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018,

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 -Not
applicable during the Review Period,;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 - Not applicable during the Review Period;

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable during the Review Period,;

(9) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 - Not applicable during the
Review Period;

OLKATA-700026. WEST BENGAL
5’ csnishamunka@yahoo.com

_Address: - 10 MAHIM




(h)

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

and based on the above examination, | hereby report that, during the Review Period:

The Listed Entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/

guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

Sr.No | Compliance Requirement Deviations Observations/
(Regulations/ circulars / guidelines Remarks of the
including specific clause) Practicing

Company
Secretary
NIL
(a) The Listed Entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above

(b)

Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from
my/our examination of those records.

The following are the details of actions taken against the Listed Entity/ its promoters/
directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under
the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars)under the
aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:

Sr.

No.

Action taken by

Details of
violation

Details of action
taken E.g. fines,
warning letter,

debarment, etc.

Observations/
remarks of the
Practicing
Company
Secretary, if
any.

subsidiaries

No action taken against the Listed Entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material




(c) The Listed Entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made

in previous reports:

Actions taken by
the listed entity,
if any

Comments of the
Practicing
Company
Secretary on the
actions taken by
the listed entity

Sr. Observations Observations

No. of the made in the
Practicing secretarial
Company compliance report
Secretary in for the year ended
the previous March 31, 2020
reports
Not applicable

For NISHA MUNKA
Company Secretary

Nisha Munka

Practicing Company Secretary
é‘:;; oo / \'Lq L‘L'Lq
Cop No.-18201
ACS: 49058
COP: 18201

UDIN: A049058B000629847

Place- Kolkata
Date- 30/07/2020




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

“Annexure -IV”

Form No

. MGT-9

EXTRACTOFANNUALRETURNASONTHEFINANCIALYEARENDEDON 31 STMARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to section92(3)ofthe CompaniesAct 2013 andrule12(1)of the

Companies (Management_and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L.LREGISTRATIONANDOTHERDETAILS:

. | istfn Dte

| Category/Sub-Category of the Company

vi.

CIN

L01132WB1927PLC005456

Name of the Company

22.03.1927

| WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Company having Share Capital

| Address of the Registered office and contact details

“Ashoka House”, 3A, Hare Street

3 Floor, Kolkata-700001, Tel : 033 22622668
Email :dcl@westcong.com

Website :www.westcong.com

Whether listed company

Yes

vii,

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and
Transfer Agentif any

M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.
23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5" Floor
Kolkata - 700001

Tel : 2243-5029/5809

Fax : 2248-4787

Email :mdpldc@yahoo.com

ILPRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Alithebusinessactivitiescontributing 1 0%ormoreofthetotal turn over of the company shall be stated:-

iarni(l\e’and‘Desc\r&iption of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
: ’products’/ services - Product/ service company
Manufacturing of Tea 1079 ; 100

Name and Address of the CIN/GLN | Holding/ %of Applicable
No. :{ Company Subsidiary shares Section
. ; i /Associate held
1. | NOT APPLICABLE
2,
3 ~
4,

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i, Category-wise Share Holding
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Category of | No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of % Change
Shareholders beginning of the year the year - during the
, ‘year

{Physical ‘vm’Fotal % of
L Total
Shares

A. Promoter
1) Indian '

a) Individual/ HUF 0] 1847925 | 1847925 | 48.44 0! 1847925 | 1847925 i 48.44 0
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt(s)
d) Bodies Corp 0 1 990000 | 990000 | 25.95| 0 990000 | 990000 . 25.95 0
o) Danka I FI e
f) Any Other

0| 2837925 | 2837925 | 74.40 0| 2837925 2837925 74.40 0

Sub-total(A) 1):-

2) Foreign
o) NRIs-Individuals
h) Other-Individuals

i) Bodies Corp.
i) Banks / FI
k) Any Other....

Sub-total(A)(2):-
B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds -
b) Banks/FI 0 1100 1100 ; 0.03 0 1100 1100 0.03 0
¢) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)
e) Venture Capital :
Funds :
f) Insurance
Companies

o) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify)

0 1100 1100 | 0.03 0 1100 1100 | 0.03 | 0
Sub-total(B)(1) i “
2. Non Institutions i
a) Bodies Corp. 0 820573 820573 | 21.51 0 820573 820573 | 21.51 0
(i) Indian
(ii) Overseas |
b) Individuals |

(i) Individual 0 90016 90016 | 2.36 0 91016 91016 | 2.36 0
shareholders holding { '
nominal share capital »
upto Rs.1 lakh

(ii) Individual
shareholders holding

nominal share capital 0 ;
in excess of Rs.1 lakh 61907 61907 1.62 0 61907 61907 1.62 : 0

¢) Others(Specify)
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0 972496 972496 | 25.49 0 972496 972496

Sub-total(B)(2)

0 973596 973596 | 25.52 0 973596 973596

Total Public
Shareholding
B)=B)DHB)2)

C. Shares held by 0 3019 3019 0.08 0 3019 3019

Custodian for
GDRs &ADRs

0.08 0

Grand Total 0! 3814540 | 3814540 100 0 3814540 @ 3814540

(A+B+C)

100 0

ii. Share holding of Promoters

Shareholder’sk Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the
Name the year year
et s~ e vowiis [y (YT T TSN TM I 7P —
Shares of - iShares .. ishare |
the Pledged / holding |
company jencumbe during the
red to year
total
L (L shares
1. | Rajendra Sethia 1660200 43.52 0 1660200 43.52 0
2. | Rajendra Sethia 160000 4.19 160000 419 0 0
(Huf) | ;
3. | Richa Sethia 15525 0.41 0 15525 0.41 0 0
4, | Rajendra Kumar 6000 0.16 0 6000 0.16 0 0
Sethia
5. | Kanishka Sethia 6000 0.16 0 6000 0.16 0 0
Sushila Sethia 200 0.01 200 0.01 0
7. | Western Logistics 960000 25.17 0 960000 25.17 0 0
Pvt Ltd
8. | Gipsy 30000 0.79 0 30000 0.79 0 0
Management Pvt f
Ltd
Total 2837925 74.40 0 2837925 74.40 0, 0
iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change
Sr..iShareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Sha;ehblding during
No | the year the year ’
' No. of shares o5 of ‘total shares |No. of shares % of total shares :
v ' of the company of the company §
2837925 74.40 ‘
/ NIL NIL
romoters.Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase
Y decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer /:bonus/ sweat-equity
efc):
2837925 74.40
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Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs

Shafehqlers afme Shaeholding at the beginning of - | Cumulative Shareholding during
L i theyear s the year
0. of shares % of total shares  No. of shares % of total shares
. - of the company | of the company

1. |Transpower Marketing Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year 335000 8.78

At the End of the year 335000 8.78 335000 8.78
2. |Madhu Trade & Investments

Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year 120000 3.15

At the End of the year 120000 3.15 120000 3.15
3. ICorbal Suppliers Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year 100000 2.62

At the End of the year 100000 2.61 100000 2.62
4. INandanMercantiles Pvt. Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 100000 2.62

At the End of the year 100000 2.62 100000 2.62
5. iNarottamka Trade &Vyapaar

Pvt. Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 80000 2.10

At the End of the year 80000 2.10 80000 2,10
6. Desanalmpex Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 51000 1.34

At the End of the year 51000 1.34 51000 1.34
7. BinduBardia

At the beginning of the year 50000 1.31

At the End of the year 50000 1.31 50000 1.31
8. iRaipur Resources Pvt. Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 30000 0.79

At the End of the year 30000 0.79 30000 0.79
9. [PunitSinghi

At the beginning of the year 6100 0.16

At the End of the year 6100 0.16 6100 0.16
10 INirmal Kumar Singhi

At the beginning of the year 6000 0.16

At the End of the year 6000 0.16 6000 0.16
11 {Anju Sethia
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At the beginning of the year

6000

0.16

At the End of the year

6000

0.16

6000

0.16

Shareholding of Directors and Key Management Personal

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of '{ Cumulative Shareholding du ring
s | theyear " the year
0. of shares o5 of total shares {No. of shares % of total shares
e of the.company of the company
A, DIRECTORS
1. Mr. Kanishka Sethia
At the beginning of the year 6000 0.16
At the End of the year 6000 0.16 6000 016
2 {Mrs. Richa Mohta
At the beginning of the year 15525 0.41
At the End of the year 15525 0.41 15525 041
3 {Mr. Kanhaiya Lal Baid
At the beginning of the year 6000 0.16
At the End of the year 6000 0.16 6000 0.16 .
4. Mr.Rajendra KumarSethia | | L '
At the beginning of the year 6000 0.16
At the End of the year 6000 0.16 6000 016
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Particulars - Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
. .‘ o o e L eXClun depsit Lo On Indebtedness
[ndebtedness at the beginning of 3
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 56158195 194463204 250621399
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not Nil Nil Nil
Total(i+ii+iii) 56158195 194463204 Nil 250621399 i
Change in Indebtedness during ~
the financial year
- Addition Nil 27748398 27748398
- Reduction 2328441 Nil 2328441
Net Change 2328441 22709238 Nit 26148988
Indebtedness at the i
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 53829754 222211602 276041356
ii) Interest due but notpaid (iii) Nil Nil Nil
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Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nl
Total (i+ii+iii) 53829754 222211602 Nil 276041356 |
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/ or Manager
SL No.| - Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total
o - Manager Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section17(1) of the Income-tax Act,

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2)Income-tax
Act,

1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary

undersection] 7(3)Income- taxAct,1961

Kanishka Sethia

Rs.4,20,000/-

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total(A)

‘ Rs.4,20,000/-

Ceiling as per the Act

Rs.24,00,000/-

B. Remuneration to other directors:

SL No.i Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total
Amount

sl =

Independent Directors

-Fee for attending board committee meetings
-Commission

-Others, please specify

NIL

Total(1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

-Fee for attending board committee meetings
-Commission

-Others, please specify

Total(2

NIL

Total(B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD
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Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

[ CEO WT Company

Secretary

CFO Total

1. Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions
contained in section17(1)of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b)Value of perquisites
u/s17(2)Income-tax

Act, 1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under
section17(3)Income-taxAct,1961

NIL 360000

NIL NIL

2. Stock Option

3. Sweat Equity

4, Commission
- as % of profit
-others, specify...

5. Others, please specify

Total NIL

e

360000

NIL NIL

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDINGOFOQFFENCES:

Brief
description

Section of
the
companies

| Details of Penalty/

| fees imposed

| Punishment/Compounding | /NCLT/Court]

Authority[RD | Appeal

! made. If

| any(give
details)

- e

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

§ B. Directors

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Com qundin
[ C:Other Officers In Default

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

Kolkata, 30*"day of July, 2020

For & on behalf of the Board
For Western Conglomerate Limited

I d
_/'/'-‘;;Ae.:v
[ al—
(Kanishka Sethia)

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN :00267232



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Annexure-V

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
Western Conglomerate Ltd has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its
related parties which is not at arm’s length during financial year 2019-20.

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details

No.

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship | Name : Western Herbicides Pvt Ltd
Relationship : Group Company

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchase of Herbicides item

3. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Throughout the year

4, Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or (1) Payment against Invoice

transaction including the value, if any (2) Value of Purchase of goods
Rs. 1,05,93,842/-

5. Date of approval by the Board No specific approval is required in
view of transactions held at arm’s
length price. However, the register of
contract was placed in all the Board
Meetings held during the year pursuant
to section 189 of The Companies Act,
2013.

6. Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Place : Kolkata
Date : 30 day of July, 2020

For & on behalf of the Board
For Western Conglomerate Limited

s

(Kanishka Sethia)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 00267232



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Industry Structure and Development

The Company’s main business is plantation, manufacture, and sale of Tea. Tea being a
seasonal industry, the plantation activities are carried out from March to December and is
subject to the vagaries of the monsoon. The area under plantation is relatively constant. The
crop yield depends on the climatic conditions to a very large extent. The steps initiated for
increasing the crop yields by implementing improved agricultural practises is not only
necessary under the circumstances but also becomes important for the industry for its
survival.

Opportunities and Threats

The Company’s major income is from sale of tea. The tea manufactured by the Company is
sold through auctions as well as private sales. The costs of production of tea, comprises of
various inputs which are required to be met by the Company as stipulated under various
statutes both Central and State including the Plantation Labour Act. Thus, after meeting the
various Central and State levies etc the industry is left with a very small margin to meet its
other expenses for advertising, marketing and sale of the product.

Segment-wise performance

The Company’s main business operation is restricted to a single segment i.e. Tea which is
manufactured and sold through either auction centres, private tea sales and is covered under
the sections Financial Results and Operations respectively in the Directors Report.

Outlook
Tea being a common man’s drink is consumed widely throughout the country.

The Tea manufactured in the country is almost sufficient to meet the internal domestic
demands. The weather is of prime importance for the Tea manufacturing industry for
achieving / maintaining the production target for the industry. Due to the vagaries of the
weather the production of tea fluctuates within a given range. However, despite this scenario
the outlook for the tea industry appears to be good, due to its increasing demand and
consumption.

Risk and Concern

The Management must constantly monitor the risks and concerns associated with the industry
which is dependent upon the vagaries of the weather to a very large extent and is also subject
to changing market conditions and the trends. Further increased supply in the global market
and slowdown of the economic growth may adversely affect the business prospects

Internal Control System & their adequacy

The Company has an effective system of internal control, commensurate with its size and it
ensures operational efficiency, accuracy in financial reporting and compliance of applicable
laws and regulations. The system is subject to review from time to time.



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Disclosures on financial performance with respect to operational performance

The disclosures under financial performance with respect to operational performance are
covered by the sections Financial Results and Operations respectively under the Directors
Report.

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front including
number of people employed

Tea Industry is highly labour intensive. The Company employs around 2000 personnel at its
Tea Estates and other establishments in India. Employee relations remained satisfactory
during the period under review. The Company would like to record appreciation of the
wholehearted support and dedication from employees at all levels in maintaining smooth
production and manufacture of tea from all the Tea Estates during the year.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this management discussion and analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, estimates and expectations may be forward looking statements  within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ substantially or
materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the
Company’s operations include a downtrend in the industry global or domestic or both,
significant changes in political and economic environment in India, applicable statues,
litigations etc.



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

CEO/CFO CERIFICATION

I, Kanishka Sethia, Managing Director, responsible for the finance function certify that:

a) I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year ended
31 March 2020 and to the best of my knowledge and belief certify that:

i.  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact containing statements that might be misleading.

ii.  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulation.

b) These are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code
of Conduct.

¢) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and 1 have disclosed to the Auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of
which [ am aware and the steps have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) I'have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
i.  significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year, if any

ii.  that there has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year
requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements and

iii.  that there are no instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any of the management or an employee having a significant
role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Western Conglomerate Limited

LT T~
Kanishka Sethia
Kolkata, 30* day of July, 2020 Chief Executive Officer &

Managing Director
DIN : 00237232
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
TOTHE MEMBERS OF WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LINITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dpinlon

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statement of WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED {'The
Company’) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the ement of Profit and Loss (ncluding
other comprehensive incomel, the Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then
ended, and a summary of significant pccounting poficies and other explanatory information (therainafter referred
to a5 “the standalone financial statements” ) which we have tigned under refetence to this report.

In our opinkan and to the bast of our infarmation and according to the esplanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the infarmation required by the Companies Aet 2013 |the “Act”) in the
manner so fequired and give a true and fair view In conformity with the Indign Accounting Standards preseribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies |indian Accodnting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended,["Ind AS") and other accounting principles ganerally accepted in hdi.p, of the state of affairs of the
Company a5 at March 31, 2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, thanges in eguity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

the Standards on Auditing [58s]
ilities under those Standards are

We conducied our audit of the standalone fimancial statement in .u:.;qrd.an¢
specified wunder section 143{10) of the Companies &ct, 2013, Qur respons
further described in the Auditers Responsibilities for the Augit of the Financidl Sioternents section of our report
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics $sued by the Institute of Chartened
Accountants of India together with the ethical reguirements that are malevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provishons of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled owr ather sthical respansibdities in accordance with these requirements and the 1ICAI's Cade of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ks sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinian
on the standalors financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wereof most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31% March, Iflﬂ. These matters wee pddressed
in the context of cur awdit of the standalone fimancial statements as a whole, Frd i Formeng our opinion thereor,
and we do not provide 3 separate opinion on these mattars,

We have determined that there are no key audit matters 1o communicate in odr report.




Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the

The Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the mattars stated in 5
2013 with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statem
financiall pasition, financial perfarmance. tatal comprehensive income, cha

ial Statements

ction 134(5] of the Companies Act,
that give a true and fair view aof the
es I equity and cash flows of the

Lompany in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted ir | India, This responsibility alio includes
responsible the maintenance of the adequate accounting recards in accardante with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and det:
seléction and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgrme
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adegquate i
operating effectively for énsuring the accuracy and completeness of the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that g
trom material misstatement, whether due to fraud of error, [

In preparing the financial staternents, management is responsibile for assessi
&% a godng concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to EOimg conger
of accounting unless management sither intends to liguidate the Group or to
alternative but to do sao. |

ng frauds and other irregularities;
and estimates that are reasonahlae
rmal financial controds, that wers
counting records, relevant to the
a true and fair views and are free

the Company's ability to continue
and using the poing concern basiz

Cease operations, or has no realistic

The Board of Directors is responsible for cversestng the Company's financial rporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finandal Statements

Our objectives are to obtan reasonable assurance about whether the finan
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue bn
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 3
accordance with SAs will always detect & material misstatement when it sxi

I statements as a whole are frea
itor's report that inchudes our
ritae that an awdit conducted in
- Msstatoments can arise from

fraud or error and are considered marerial i, individually ar in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these findne

al statemants,

Ag part of an audit |n accordance with SAs, we exercise professional [udgment and maintain professional

skapticism thraughout the audit. We alsa:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial =
or error, design and perferm audit procedures responsive to those rigks,)
suffickent and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion, The

atements, whether dug 1o fraud
and obtain audit evidence that is
isk of not detecting 3 materal

misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting flom error, as fraud may invoive

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentstions, or the oven

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant tot
procedures that are appropriate in the chircumstances, Under sectis
responsible for expressing our apinion an whather the Compaty has|a
system in place and the aperating effectivenass of such contrals,

and rlated disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s wse of the going

ride of Internal control

sudit 1 order to deskgn audit

HEH{EIHI:I af tha Act, we are also

guate internal finencial contraly

Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasorableness of accounting estimates

ancern basls of accounting and,

based on the auwdit evidence obtained, whether & material unu:eirr
canditions that may cast significant doubt on the abifity of the Compd

v exists related o Bwents of
5 10 CONtinue as a going Concern,

If we conclude that a material uncertainty éxists, we are required to draw attention in aur auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financizl statements or, if sich disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our epinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidencel obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report, Howewver, future events or conditions may cause thd company to ceass to continue ac a

HOIRE condem




* Evaluate the overall presentation, strocture and content of the fid
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the wnderd
manner that achleves fair presentation. '
Materiality & the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statemests
makes it probable that the econamic decisions of a reasanably knowledgeah
may be influsnced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative fac

t
audht work and in evaluating the results of oor work; and (i} to e«vhh:

misstatements in the financial statemenis.

We communicate with those charged with Eovermance rgarding, among uth
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any si
we identify during our audit,

jancial statements, including the

ying transactions and events in a

that, individually or in aggregate,

# user of the financial statements
sin (i} planning the scope of our
te the effect of any identified

r matters, the planned scope and

grificant déficiencies in internal control that

We also provide thowe charged with governance with a statement that we hay

& complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding indegendence, and to communicate with them all reltionships and sthar matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on eurindependence, and where applicatie, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. Due tp COVID-19 pandemic and censequential nabormwide lockdown ann

State Government inchuding travel rastriction, maintenance of soea)
performed audit from Head Office; Branch Ofice and remote (oot o
Hocuments, management estimates, asumptions, certificstes and othe

punced by the Cantral and variou

wancing, etc, the sudit team ha

the basis of data, scanned cope:

nformation suppliad electisnicall,

by the management on online platform, We have refied on Man 1
completeness and accuracy of thise records electronically submitted o
physical Inventory verification done by the Management was impracti
restrictions imposed Dy the Government and we have thescfare, refie
procedures to audit the sxstence of inventory as per the guwidance pr
Spacific Considerstion for Selected items” and have obtained _=.|_rfﬁr_-E-r'jl
aur unmodified opinion on this statement,

Cur ognion B not modifiod n respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

|, Asrequired by Section 143{3] of the Act. based an our audit we feport that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explangtic

knowhadge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit, |

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
appears from cur examination of those books.

s assurances of the authenticit,
% Further; our attendance at th
able undar the current Eockdow:
on the related alternative awdin
vida in 5A-201 “Audit Evidence
propriate audit svidence ta s

ns which to the bBest of aur

Rept by the Company so far as it

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profic and Loss [including r_ﬂ:H comprehensive income), the
Atatement of Changes in Equity and the cash flows are dealt with by this Report are In agreement
with the refevant books of account.

d} Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply the specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Aulds, 2015, as amended.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March

41, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the dire

A1, 2020 from being appointed a5 a director in terms of Section 164 {2)

e/

r5 is disgualified as on Barch
of the Act.




iy With respect te the adegquacy of the mternal financial controld
Carmpany and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer e
A" Dr report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adeguacy a
Company's internal financial contrals over financial reparting.

With respect 10 the other mattess to be incloded in the Auditor's
requirements of section 197(16] of the Act, as amended:

gt

In our opinion and ta the best of gur information and according ko
remunaration paid by the Cormpany to its directors during the
provisians of section 197 of the Act,
h) With respact to the other mattars to be Included In the Auditor's Rl
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in
our informatien and according to the explanations given to us:

L
financial statemants,
The Company has made provision, as reguired under |
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long!
contracts '
tii
Educatien and Protection Fund.

-
=

The Compunies (Auditor’s Report) order, 2006 (“he order™) issued by

spesified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, 10 1he extent applicable,

ith
termia of subsection (11) of section 143 of the Ao we give in the .-'mneul

r fimancial reporting of the

=
tEjt separate Report in “Annexure

operating effectiveness of the

Regor in accordance with the

he axplanations given to us, the

yaar s in accordance with the

sport in accordance with Rule 11
our aginion and to the best of

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigationg on its financial position of the

applicable law or accounting
contracts including dertvative

There has been no dalay in transferring amounts, required th be transferred, to the Investar

Cenral Government of India in
re {4, n sigtement on the matiers

Far MARDTI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

= _.“ .rll’lll Registration No. 322770E

Place- Kaolkata
Date- 30.07.2020

CA M, K. Maroti
Partner

Membership No.:057073
WDIMN:Z005FOFIAAAAAKTTOY




re - i r's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) af Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”)

We have audited the internal financal controls over finankial reporting of WESTERM
CONGLOMERATE LIMITED ("the Company") as af 31® March 2020 §n conjunchion with our audit of
the Standalone Financal Staterments of the Company for the yvear anded on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and| maintaining intermal financial
controls based on the intemal control ever financial reporting criterta established by the Company
considering the esseatial components of internal control stated in fhe Guidsnce Nota on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting iszued by the Institute of Chamered Accountants
of Indla { ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectivelyl for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of ite
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility 15 to express an opinion on the Company's internal Financial controls over financial
reparting based on our sudit. We conducted our audit in accordhnte with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Coentrols over Financial Reporting i: "Guidance Mote®} and the
Standards on Auditing, 1ssued by 1CAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an awdit of internal financal controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financal Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, '

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained &nd if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. |

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their gpérating effectiveness. Our audit
of intermal financial contrels over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding af internal
financial controls owver financial reporting, assescing the risk that a terial weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the degsign and operating effectiveness af [nternal control based on the
assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditer's judgrient, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financal statements, wh r due to fraud or emmor,

We belisva that the audit evidences we have obtained aré sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial dontrols system owver financial
reporting.

I~




MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial contral over financial reporting is
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
statements for external purposes in accordan

A process designed to provide
and the préparation of financial
ce with gernerally actepted accounting principles, A

Company's internal financial control over
that:

financial reporting includes

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the compan
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are re
preparation of financial staterments in acoordance  wit

2.

those policies and procedures

L. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in ressonable d:IaIF, accurately and fairly reflect

d as nedgssary to permit
erally accepted accounting

h gen
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the cm‘&anv arg being made only |m

accordance with authonizations of managerment and directors
provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or
dcquisition, use, or
the financial

dispasition al the Company's assaets that
slatements,

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CON
REFORTING

Betausa of the inherent limitatians of internal financlal contrals gy
the possibility of collusion or ImMproper management override of co
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec)
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future period
internal
conditiong, or that the degres of compliance with the policies or pro

OPINION

In our opinfon, the Company has, in all matenal
system over financial reporting and such internal financial can
operating effectively as at 317 March 2020, based on the inte
criteria established by the Company considering the essential compo
In the Guidance Nate on Audit of Internal Financial Contro
Institute of Chartered Accountante of India,

trols

the company: and

timely detection of unautharized

uld have a material effect an

TROLS OVER FINANCIAL

financial reporting, induding
trofs, material misstatements
icns of any evaluation of the

5 are subject to the risk that the
financial contral over financial reporting may become inz:iquate because of changes in

ures may deteriorate,

respects, an adequate internal finandal controls

|aver financial reporting were

rnal l.‘.é*.lntrul over financial reporting

jents of internal control stated

I5 Over Findncial Reporting issued by Ehe

For MAROTI & ASSDCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 322770E

Place- Kolkata
Date- 30.07.2020

oo wgp Meeal

CA M. K. Maroti

Partner

Membership No.:057073
UDIN: 2005707 3AAMAAKTTOT




The Annesure refarrad to in Independent Auditer's Report to the member:

financial statements for the vear ended 317 March 2020 we report that-

1

7.

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report

a) The Company has maintainad proper records showing full par
details and situation of its fixed assets,

b} The Company has a regular programme for physical verificati
which, In our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of 1
its assets, According to the information and explanations given to

were noticed on such physical verification.

€} In respect of immovable properties of land that have boen lia

progerty, plant and equipment in the fingncial statements, a

af the Company an the

iculars, induding quantifative

in phasad periodic manner,
@ Company and the nature of

us, no material discre panchey

en on lease and disclosed as

ding to the information and

explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the documents provided ta us,

we report that the lease agreements are in the former name of t
COLTD, where the company is the lessee in the agreament,

The Management has conducted physical verification of imventory
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physi
According to the information and explanation given to us, the Cf

loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability!

company, THE HBRUGARH

t reasonable intervals during
I verification.
bmpany has not granted any

Fartnerships or other parties

covered in the rogister maintained under section 189 of the {anpames Act, 013 {'the Adt').

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3iii) {a), (b) and (c} of the Ofder are not applicable to the

Comipany and hence not commented ugon

In aur opinion and according to the information and explanatiops

provided ta us, the Company

has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans,

imvestmants guarantees and secunty,

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Accordingly, the

Directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions

of sections 73 10 76 or any

other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rulas framed thareunder are not

Applicatile to the company for the year under audit,
The Central Government has not prescribed for the maintenance
148(1] of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions jof

not applicable to the Company.

) According to the information and explanations given to us, the

of cost racords under section
Clause 2vi) of the order are

rompany has penerally been

regular in depositing undizputed statutony dues;-includimg Provident Fund, Employess’ State

Fats
-y

T




10.

11.

Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate

authorities.

According to the infarmation and explanation given to us, ng undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, | ¢ tax, and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31" March 2020, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.
b) According to the information and explanations given [to us, the following dues of
Ineome-tax at 31° March 2020, have not been deposited by the Company on account of

disputes given below:

STATUTE NATURE OF | AMOUNT PERIOD TO WHICH | FORUM WHERE
DUES INVOLVED ({in | RELATES DISPUTE IS
laes) PENDING
THE  INCOME | INCOME 1230 | AY 200435 CITla)
TAX ACT, 1961 TAX

According to the information amd explanations given (ta us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of loans: or borrowing to a ITam‘_ial institution, bank or
Government. However, Company was not able to pay the installment of Rs 7,29,031/-
payable 1o Tea Board for the month of March, 2020, due to nationwide lockdown imposed
by the Government. However, the said installment has Been repaid on 16/07/2020.

Further, the campany has not borrowed fund by way of issuelof debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any
money by way of initial pubdic offer, further public offer od term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 {iz) of the Order is not applicable.

T the best of our khowledge and belief and according to thelinformation and explanations
given 1o ws, no materal fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees during the year was noticed or reparted, nor we hae been infarmed of such case

by the management,

dccording to the information and explanations prmrln"fd by the managemeni, the
managenal remunaration has been paid/provided in acdordance  with the reguisite
appravals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule W to the At




12. According to the information and explanations given 1o us) the Company is not a naidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3[xii} of the Order 5 ngt applicable and hence not

comimentad ugon

13.  According 1o the information and explanations provided by {he Management, transaction
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act,2013, where applicable, and detalis of such transactions have been disclosed in the

financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards,

14, According to the information and explanations provided to us and on an overall examination
of balance sheet, the Company has not made any prefdrential allotment ar private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear under review
and hence reporting requirements under clause 3jxiv) of the Crder are not applicable ta the

Company and, not commented upan,

15. According to the information and explanations provided bythe management, the Company
nas not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragragh 3{wv) of the Order is not
Applicable.

16. Accorging to the information and explanation provided to us, the company is not required
to be registéred under section 4514 of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 and accordingly,
the provision of clause 3{xvi} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MAROTI & ASSOCIATES
Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration No. 322770E

o dae, oonem, Hack .

I3[ woLkaTa |4

REN CA M.K. Maroti
Place - Kolkata e, Partner
Date- 30.07.2020 “insle | Membership No.:057073

UDIN| 2005707 3AAAAAKTTOT




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2020

Particulars
ASSETS
Won-Current Assats
{a} Property, Plani and Equipmeni
(b} Intangible Assels
(e} Financial Assots
i} Investments
(e} Ctmer Mon-Current Assels

Current Assefs
ja) Biplogical Assets other than Bearer Planis
(b} Inventenes
() Finangial ~Asagis
it Trade Recevable
iy Cashand Cash Egquivalenis
iy Loans
w} Cither Current Fmancial Assets
{dy Current Tax Assets (Meat)
(e} Cther Current Assats

Total Assets =

EQUITY AMND LIABILITIES
Ecpuity
ia) Share capital
(b} Dithar Equily
il Hesgrve & Surplis

LIABILITIES
Hon-Current Liabilites
{a) Finansial Liakddies
i) Borowings
[b) Long Term Provisions
(e} Deferred Tax Liabilitias (Ket
Currant Liabilitkes
{a) Finansial Liakilibes
I Barrowings
u} Trade Fayabies
i) Qher Current Financial Liabilibes
(k) Other Current Liakdlies
) Provisions

Total Equity & Lisbiitlies =

The accompanyng ftles aie an integrat part of thesa Financial Slatemer
This Is the Balance Sheet referred 1o in our Report of even date

151

162

Mote

Ln

1
11
12
i3
4
18

17
18
18

20
2
22
23
24

Az al As at
34.03. 2020 31.03.2019
F= Hs
A8 48 14,494 407,54 45 562
1,83,82,000 1,683,862 000
&0.23 RE2 /5 33,650
03.00. 180 oE oD, 180
4995 20 540 4391 62,832
37474 202 3,858 4582
6,20, 82 033 37072578
L2 84 048 1,12,29,080
48 81413 5,274,733
5,331,603 5,17 808
1,83,75,364 160,40 858
4% 37 4606 45 65 T4T
5821920 7423, 341
13,30.848,964 11,595,365 634
63,29,89,604 61,586,985 466
3.81.45400 381,458,400
3,54,30.514 312.01.550
7.35,75 814 6,93,46,950
5B A8 453 8587633
55200022 008 11,505
1120617 B.&5 Ti6
38,96 40 724 15 15,118,588
2 63 30 38T 3,01,307312
a4 30270 b
1.58:.97 428 365,33 932
218,07 769 1,54, 11,232
55.94 13 500 54.83,51 518
63.29,89 504 61,086,598 466
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WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit & LOSS for the year ended 31 March 2020

Particulsrs Hotes
REVEMUE :
Iy Rewarus from Cperatians 25
iij Qther ncoms 28
Total Revenue
EXPENSES :
i} Costod Materal Consurmed i
il Ghanges in lmeansorios af Finished Gaeds 20
il Emplapees Banalil Expenass 26
) Firanos Costs ab
%] Deprecislon and dmorisation Expanses N
W) Cihar Expansas iz
Total Expenscs
Prafit I {Logs} batore Tax
Tax Expenses
Currant Tax

Profitf {Loss) for the year

Qiher comprehensive income (ot of tax sxpanes)
Hems that will net ba reclassified ta pralit or loss
{iy Fempasuraments af pegt-amploymant banslil atligations
(i} Fair vaboatan of eguity mvestmants
{1} Incoma b nalating b thaee Boms thad will net ba
raclasaifad subsequanty to ha stalement of profl and loss

Oihar comprehongive incomo for the year, net of tax
Total comprenansive income for (he year

Earning per Equity Share
Basic and Dibuied sarnings per shane (A |

The gccompanying noles ase an integral part of these Finanelal Sisiements

This is the Proft and Loss refermed 1o in our Repon of even galo

Yoar Endod
31.03.2020

25 66.89,128
225 TE A2

270 T2,E38

#.83.975
{1,38,66,720)
18,358 15,736

1.40,33,077
&1, 641
737,650,010

T 1 27,74.49,710

18,32 827

14,70,000
382 927

27.50,T46
12,80, 1HE
0,801 )

30, 7a.037

BT

0.0%

¥ ear Emded
.03, 2019
R

22.66.38 %31
58.40.184

T 137476815
——— i

{88, 30,038)
16,77.31.444
1.74 46,082
92,68,838
§,70,43,958

26,26 60 185

{3,083, 871)

01,583,871

(41.54,285)
867,298
{1,85,284)

134,52 258}
(336,36, 123)

{(7:87)
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Miamborship Mo, 057073 Managing Diroclor
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WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW far the year anded 311t March, 2020

[Particulars As il As &l
L 315t March, 2020 31st March, 2019 |
A, CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES |
Mot Prafit before taxation and exiraordingry tams 1822827 {3.01,83,871)
idjustrnests o -
Depreciaton and Amartisabian Expansas 9103541 2 G930
Fimpnca Cest 14035677 2,74 46,082
Inferest Incorme {120,855} (133770
Diwvidend Incaoe {30.710F  Z239.88139 {3.390) 38577861
Dparating Profil befare working Capial changas 2.0 08,036 63,50, 880
BAdjustment Foi
mcragsaiDecrease) in Other Non-Cunant Assets = 17.B0.800
IngregsalDecrease] in Bakgical Assgls 14 43 580 1R 2H.TH)
Incresss’Dacreses) o iInvaniooies (1.50.09.458) 81 56,281
IncressasDocrease} n Trode Recaivablos 18,85 032 (34T D3
Increased|Decradas) 1 Laans - {5.31,808)
Increased{Decrease) m Ciher Fingndial Assets (23,34 510] 4, 00,278
Incemased|Decreass) in Cihar Curnant Assals 18,00 415 A7 35 BN
Incemased|Oacmease) in Trode Payabdas (38,00,385) 5784, 743
Increase|Decseass) in Cihar Liskilkles (88, 00,704 | (24800 SEE) 145,82 633 85 B0 332
Cash Goneraled from Operaliang (=M= R 1,30 5% 322
Incame Tax Paid {rh1TE {13,377}
Mot Cash Flow frem Qperation I:iEHIZI.EEE} 1,230,400, 945
B, GCASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchasa of Fised Aasats (34,71, 157) 129,32 645}
Inl=res incoma 1.20, 868 | 1,323,710
Dividend Incoms 0710 (E3HE57H) 3,364 (2795 488))
(EINE6TH) [27 368 445)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES r
Finarcs Cosd {1,40,33,097) (2 74 48 DAT)
Proceads fram Shot Term Barrawings 281,21 ,136 197,76, 144
Proceass fram Long Tarm Dorcwings (701, 179 11386 B30 70117 LA
PR T {1,068, 1,117)
Het Change in Cash and Cagh Eguividonts (A+0+C) 12|88, 680 (1,26,687)
Cash ard Cash Equivaiznts (Oparing Betancs) 36,724,733 ar.50.350
Cash ard Cash Equivaienis (Clasing Balance| AE1 413 36,24,733

NOTES:

1 The above cash flow statemant has been prepsed under the “Indinoct Method” as 561 out in e Indian Accaunting Slandard - 7

an Satemerd of Cagh Flow Statements,

2 Previous yaars fguses have been egrouped where recessary b confimm bo fhe

rl.lm:mm clasgdheation.

For /6. Marotl & Associries e
Firm Registration Mo, 3227708 - . 0o 70
Chartered Accounianis

Pt mmm«m

tladan Kumar Maroti

Partnar -
Membership Wa. 05707

Diate : A0th July, 2030, Kalkats

jﬁi—:ﬁfr-r

Kanishka Sethia

Chairman

Managing Direclor
DHM-D026T233

For and & behall of tha Board of Directors

L
H.L Baid Khushboo Saral
Diractor Compamy Secretary
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WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 317" MARCH, 2020

1. Company Owarniow

The Western Conglomerate Limited is engaged in the cultivation. manufﬁc:mrn and trading of tea. The
Company operates with one iea estate in West Bengal and sefls bulk tea in domestic markets. The Company
alsa produces instant Tea at its plant located in Hasimara, West Bengal. The/Company 15 2 ksted company in
the Caleutta Stock Exchange (CSE]. The financial statements for the year arupd were approved by the Board
of Directors and authorized for issus on 319 May, 2020

|
2. Statement of Compliance
These financial stetemants. fer the year ended 31st March 2020, have pesn prepared 0 accordance with
indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (indign Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015 & amanded by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) [Amendment) Rules 2016,

1. Significant Accounting Policies
A. Bazis of Preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the histerical cost basis except for cenamn ilems which are
measured @t fair value at the end of each repording penod, as explained in the accounting policies given
b low, [

Historical cost 15 generally based on the fair value of the consideration ¢HI‘I im exchange for geods and
LEMViDESs |

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sefl an asset or paid w transfer a kiabilty in an orderly
iransaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly
egervable or estimated using ancthar valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or &
Hahility, ihe Company takes into aceount the characteristics of the asset or kability f market parficipants would
take those characlerislics into account when pricing the assel or liabdity 3t the measurement date

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Imd A5 ru-qulres'rrﬂnag-mhenl to make juedgmemts,
estimates and assurnplions that affect the application of the accounting puimt and the reported amounts of
gessi= and lsbilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilites at the date of the financial statemenis
and the repored amounts of revenues and expenses duning the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on an cngoing basis

Revisions to accounting estmates are recognised in the period n W‘i'ﬂl.'-lllnﬂ‘muflﬂmﬂtﬂa are revised i the
revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both currént and future pereds.

8. Oparating Cycle
21 assets and kabllities have been dassified as current or non-current s pkr the Company's normal operating

eycie and ofher criteria set out in the Schedule il to the Companies Act, 20132 and Ind AS 1.The Company

has aseertsined s operaling cycle as twelve months for the purpose of cdmrent and non-current classification
&f assats and Habilities '

C. Property, Plant & Equipment '
{i} Tangible Assets (Other than Bearer Plants]

Froperty, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated ﬁepra-:.:balhn and accumulated impairment
lnsses Cost is inclusve of incidental expenses related to acquistion. hmmnn costs atiributable to the

construction or production of qualifying assets are captalized Expenses for the repair of property, plant and
equipment are charged againg! income when incurted

Land is nol depreciated e, I



WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED
WOTES ON FINANCLAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 317 MARCH, 2020

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administ-ative purposes are carmed al cost,
i8S any racognised impairment loss Depreciation of these assets, are on the same basis as piher property
asgets, and commences when the assets are ready for thair intended use

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no fuure economic banefits
are expected to anse from the continued use of asset Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirernent of
an iiem of propery, plant and equipment is determined as the differance betwean the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of ihe asset and i recognized in proft or loss, The estmaled useful lives are also as
epeciied in Schecule || of the Companies Act, 2013 i

liems of Propenty, Plant and Equipment are depreciated in 8 manner that amprises the cost of the assets less
s residual value, on a written dawn value methed on the basis of useful liv prescribed in Schedubs 1 15 the
Companies Act, 2013. The estimated usaful lives, residual values and dmp:ﬂatrun method are reviewsad al
the end of each reporting period and the effect of any changes in egtimate is accounted fos on a prospective
basis [

An transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue Wwiih the nalwlr'rg value of all of As property,
plant and equipment (other than bearer plants) recognised as of 151 April, zﬂﬂ'." {transition date) measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as #s deemad cosl

(i) Bearer Plants

Bearer plants comprising of mature tea bushes and shade trees are Stated al cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses [

immature bearer piants, including the cost Incumed for procurement of new seads and mantenance of
nurseries, are camied al cost less any recognized impairment losses dar capital work-in-progress. Cos!
includes the cost of land preparation, new planting and maintenance of n plantad bushes until maturity
Immature bearer plants expenditure incumred on them for five years are treated in the financial giat=ments as

Binlogzal Assets (Mote:B} On maturity, these cosis are classified under bearer plants. Depreciation of bearer
plants commense on maturity :

Costs incurrad for infilling ncluding bleck infiling are generally recognized h the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless thete is @ significant increase in the yield of the secfions. in which case such costs are capitalized and
depreciated over the remasning useful lifa of the respective sachans.

Depreciation on bearer plants |s recogrised so as to write off its cost over useful Ives, using the written down
yalue method The estimated usaful fives. residual values and depraciation metnod are reviewed at the end of
mach mmm,uﬂhmmmulmmlmhmmm@rmammmﬂem.

Estimated useful lives of the bearer plants has been determined to be 55 years. On iransdion to ind A5, the

Campany has recognised bearer plants for the first time as required by Ind 45 101 at fair value as of 1st April.
2018 and used the fair valus as deemed cost. i

D. impairment of Asseis

&t the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews The camying anounts of its tangible (Bearer Plant}
assets 1o determing whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairmant loss, if any
such mdication existe, the recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
Impalrment loas {if any).



WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED ) ,
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31°" MARCH, 2020 '

An impainment loss is recognized for the armaunt by which the carying agm af the ssset exceeds is
racoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's net selling price and s Tra‘luein use

Recovarable amount i the higher of fair valus |ess costs of disposal and wﬂul! in use.
If impairment & no longer justfied in fulure pariods due 10 8 recovery in sssets’ fair value of value in use, the
imparmant reserve is rewersed.

E. Biological Assets

(i} Biological Assets
Biglogical assats of the Company reprasent the young plant which ars undcer progress and will be converted
o Bearer Plants after the expiry of five years when ey yield as matured ea (capitalised). On transition to
ind A5 e Company has recognised bisingical assets for the first Ume as required by Ind AS 101 at {air valee
besg cost 1o 5ell as at 15 April 2017 (fransibon dafa).

F. Inventories
Inventores an stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Finished goods produced rom agnculiursl
produce are valued at jawer of cost arivad at by adding the cost of mnuarjim to the fair value of agricultural
produce and the net realizable valua Met realizable walue representy the estimated selling price 1o
nventeries loss all selling costs.

Prowision is made for cheokete, slow moving and defective inventosnes, whenaver Necassary.

@. Foreign Currency Transactions

The presentation currency of the Company s Indian Rupeas. Transaclions in foreign currancy ars accounted
for =t the exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date, Monetary wrgnsactions remaining unseftied are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the year Exchange gain of |oss ansing on
sattiamenttranslation is recognisad in the syatement of Proft and Loss. :

H. Financial Instrumants

Financial assets and financial kiabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the mstrument. Financial assets and hebililies are intially measured at fair value. Transachon
coate tat are directly attributable to the acguisdion or issue of financial azsats and firancial liakdlties {siher
than financial assets and financial iabiities at fair value throwgh profit and boss) are added to of deducted from
the fair vakse measured on initial recognition of financlal assel or finafcial Hability. The transaction costs
directly atiributable fo the acnussition of financial assets and fnancial lisbllities at fair value through profit and
ioss @re immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. I
1

Effective Interest Method

The efiective interest mathod is a method of calculating the amartised Sost of a fnancial instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the raie that
exactly discounts fulure cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the firancial mstument, of
where appropriate, a shorter pariod B I



WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31°" MARCH, 2020

Financial Assels

Cash and Gash Equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents includes cash i hand, demand deposits with bariks, other shorl-term highty quid
investments with original matuities of three manths or lees Eank overdrafts are shown within bormowings in
current habiligies (n the balance sheet

Oihar Bank Balances

Oithar bank balances Include deposits with maturdly iess than hweive months bui greater than three manths
and balances and deposds with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and -..‘f.r..aga

Financial Assats at Amortised Gost

Financial assels are subsequently messured at amortised cost i these T:I[mnciai assets are held within a
nusiness model whose obsective is to hold these assets n arder 1o mﬂaull confractual cash flows and the
coniractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash fows that are salely payments of
principal and imterest on the principal amoum outstanding

Financial Assats Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured &t Fair value through other comprehansive income. (FVOCH) if these financial
aasets are held within a business model whose objective ks to hold these aspats in order to collect contractsal
cash flows or fo sell these financial assets and the contraciual terme of the financial asset give rse on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of prncipal andintamul. on the principal amounl
outstanding

The Company in respect of equity investments which are not held for trading has made an irevocable lechon
1o present in ofher comprahénshe income subsequent changes in the fair vakee of such equity instrumants
Such an eloction l& made by the Company on an instrument Dy instrument basis at the time of inital
recagnition of such equity investmants

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through oiher comprehensive Income i carried
at Fair vakue through the Statement of Profit and Loss. (FVPL).

De-recognition of Financial Assals

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the confraciual rights 1o the cash fows from the
assel gxpire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of ihe asset
o another enmtity. H the Company neither transfers nor refains substanfially all the risks and rewards of
owmership and continues to contral the transferred asset, the Company resognises ts retainad intérest in the
assets and an associaled ety for amounts it may have o pay

if the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the

Company confinues 1o recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralksed borrowing for the
proceeds received

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as Debt or Equity

Financial liabilibes and equity instruments issued by the Company are chassified sccording 1o the substance of
the contraciual arrangements entered into-and the definitions of a finmncial lisbilty and an equity instrumant



WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 3157 MARCH, 2020

Equity Instruments

An equity mstnemend s any eantract that evidences @ residual interest in I*e assats of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilies. Equity instruments are recorded al the pmmilnda received, net of drect Bsue
Cags. |

Financial Liabilites

Trade and other payables are initially measurad 31 fair vahie, net of rensaciion costs, and are subsaguantly
measured al amonised cost, using the effectve imterest rate method w the time value of monay is
gignificamt

Intersst bearing bank loans, overdrafis and issued debi are initially measured at fair valee and are
subsequently measured at amodised cost using the effeclive interest rate mathod, Any difference between ihe
procaeds (net of transacton cosis) and the setlement or redemption of bormowings is recognised over the
sermm of the borrowings in the Statement of Prafit and Loss. I

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial labilibes when, and only whan, the Comparny.s ohisgations. are
discharged, cancelled of they expire |

Offsetting Financial Instruments |

Financial assets and liabiities are offeet and the net @mount is reparted the balance sheet where There is a
legally enforceable right to offse! the racognised amounts and there iz an |htention o settle on a net Dasis ar
realise e asset and settle the lability simuttaneousty. The legally entorceakle right must not be contingant on
faiure evenis and must be enforceable W the normal course of business and in the event of default

insalvency or bankrupicy of the Company of the counierparty. [

Financial assels and financial liakilities are recognized when the Company }:E:D'ME a party to the contractual
provisions of the relévant instrument and are initally measured at fair value Transaction costs that are deeclly
attributabie to the acquisition or ssues of financial assets and financial lisbilites (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss) are ddded to of deducted from the fair
value measured on Initial recognibon of financial essets or fnancial kabilties. Purchase or sale of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, L., the date when the Company commils: o
purchase or sell the asset |

I. Revenue from sale of products

Revenue 15 measured at the fair value of the consideration recaived or receivable and is nel off relums anad
disconts.

Revenue frem the sale of goods includes dufies which the Company pays as principal bul excludes amourts
collacted on behalf of thind partes. [

Revenus from the sales of goods is recognised in the income statement when the goods are dalivered to
customers for domestic sales or when deliverad 10 @ camer for export sales, which is when title and rigks and
rewands of cwnership pass 1o the customer |

J. Borrowing costs

Bomrowing costs include interest, ather costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings 1o the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interast
cnst General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the amq'nm. construction o production of
qualifying assets. which are assels thal necessarily laxe 5 substantial period of time to gel ready for their

A



WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED i
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 317 MARCH, 2020

I

I

intended use or sale, are added o the cost of those assets, until such ime s the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Premum in the form of fees paid on refnancing of loans are accounted
for as an expense over the fife of the loan using effective interest rate methad. All other borrowing costs are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periad in which they are incumed

K. Employee Benefits
Pravident Fund |
The Comgany operales defined contribution schemes M Provident Fund The Company makes reguiar

contribution 1o provident funds which are fully funded and administared by q-amnmem and are independent
of Company's finance. Contribulions are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis,

Compensatad AbSences

Aceumulated compensated absences which are expected 10 De availed of encashed within tasive monins
from the end of the year are trested as short term employee benefits, Th obiigation towards the same is
measured at the expecied cost of accumulating compensating absences a3 additional amount expected o
e paid as a result of the unused entittement as at the year-end.

Accumudated compeneated absences which are expected 1o be availed or encashed beyvond twelve months
from the year end are freated as olher long lerm employee benefits. The Company's lability is acharially
getermined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of eath year Actuaral loss/gains are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise

Post Employment Benefit Plans I

For Defined Benefil Pians, the cost of providing benefits is determaned umnql the Projected Unit Credit Method
wilh aciuanal valuations being carmed ouf at each Balance Sheet date Re-measurement gains and bosses of
the net defined benefit [atédy/{asset] are recognised immediately in ﬂ’p-r comprehensive income. The
seryice cost and ret inferest on the net defined benefil liability/ (asset) | reated as @ net expenss within
amployment costs, Past service cost is recognised as an expense whan tie plan amendment or curtailment
ocours or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits aré recognised, whichever is earlier
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Baiance Sheet represents the presant value of the definad

benefit abligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as ﬂ!duced by the fair value of schems
BEEEIE
' I

|
Any asset resulling from this ealculation is imited to the presant value of any economic benefit available in the
form of refunds fram the pian o reductions in future conirbutions to the plan

L. Tazes on Income

Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes Curend tax in the statement of profit and
loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable incame for the panod using tax rates and
tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment io tax p:-.hhﬂe in respect of previous years

Dieferred tax (s recogrized on temporary differences between the carmying amounts of assels and liabilities
and the corresponding ax bases used in the computalion of taxatle profit. Deferred tax kabilties are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differances. Defered tax assels are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences fo the extent that it is probiable that taxsble profits will be available agains!
which those deductible temporary differences can be utised Such deferied tax sssets and liabilities are nol
recognised i the temporary difference arises from the inital recognition of assets and labilities in a
sransaction that affects neither ihe taxable profit nof the accounting profit. |
|

I
Defarred Lax llabslites and assets are measured 8t the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the penod in
which the fiability is setied or the asset reaksed, based on tax rates (and fax laws) that have been anacted or
syubstantively enactad by the end of the reporting period. | &
A
gt
|5 | mo

N
e



WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED . ;
NOTES DN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31% MARCH, 2020 '

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when hey diah to flems that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly In equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

M. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present shligation (legsl or constructive) as a result of a
past evant, i s probabie that the Company will be requirad lo settla the mn and a reliable estimate can
ke made of the amount of the obiigation

The amourd recognised a8 @ provison IS the best estimaie of the mﬂamlim required 1o seftie the presant
abdgation at the end of the reporting peviod. taking info account the nsks +nd umcertainties surrounding the
abligatian

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumplans conoerning the futere and other key sources of estimating uncertainty
a5 al the balance sheet date thal may have a significant rizk of cansing 8 1 | adjustment 1o the carmying
amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year. The Company based its assumplions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial stataments ware p red Existing clrcumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to markel changes O circumsiances
aring beyond the contred of the Company. Such changes ara reflected in the gssumptions when they occur

A. Useful Lives of Property, Plant And Equipment

The Company has adopted the useful ves as specified in Schedule Il af the Companies Acl. 2013 for
property, plant and equipment other than for bearer plants. For beares plarts, it has determined the useful ife
to be 55 years The Company reviews the estmated useful lives at the end of each reporting penod. Such
useful lives depend upon various Faclors such as usage, maintenanca practices elc. and can irealve
sstimation Uncsrainty, Changes In the expected level of usage and technalogical developments coubd impact
\he economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation charges couid
be revisad, The carmyng amount of the Company's Property. Plant and El:iuipmm‘ltrtﬂw batance sheet date
is disclosed in Mote:5 to the financal statemants.

B. Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

An impairment axiste when the carrying vaiue of an agsel axcends its recoverable amount. which is the higher
of its fair value bess costs 1o sell and its vatue in use, The fair value less dosts to sell calculation iz based on
avaliable dats from binding sales transactions in an arm's length transachon of similar assets or chservabie
market prices less incremental costs for disposing the assel. The valué in use calculation s based on a
discountad cash flow model and requires the Company to make an estimale of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unids end also 1o choose a suitable descount rate in order to calculate the present
vaiue of those cash fiows '

. Fair valus measuraments and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets are measured ai fair value for financial reporting purposes.

Significant estimates are used in fak:ﬂlylm of Bearer Plants and biological assets
AR ASER

5
() -



WESTERN CONGLOMERATES LIMITED |
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year andod 17 MARCH, 2020 ‘

I
For bearer plants, the Company has used fair value as determined Dy third party qualified valuer, The valuer
has considersd obeservable markel mputs such as sale prices and historcal information of past productian
The key assumptions considered here is sensitive. Reasonable shifls in assumptions including but not fimited
in increase or decrease in sale prices and production which I8 dependent on favourable weather ponditions
would resull in increase or decrease to the fair value of bearer plants considered as of st April 2018 @
deemed cosl

b. Employee Defined Banefit Plans

The determination of Company's ksbility towards defined benefit obligati to empioyess s made Ihfough
independent actuarial valuston. Such valuation depends. wpon assumpti determined afler taking info
aceount inflation, prometien and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment
miatkel,
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WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED
{8mount in Rs.)
Moles on Finamoial Sletements for the yoar onded 3181 Barch, 2020 As al s ot
StMar-20 31 -Mar-19
6 Investments
Mar Current
Invessdmeants in Equily Shares Faca Wil
In Crihars {at fair value throogh othet comphehensive moome)
(i} Cooted
300 {31 March 2018 1 300} equity shams of Mclaod Russel
Irdi Ltd 10 600 25 725
T20 |31 Morgh 2018 720 equily shames ol Goodicks
Growup Lid 10 75,278 1,56 860
S84 (31 Merch 2095 584) equity sharmes of Assem Co
{Iredia) Lid 10 1,184 1,184
200 [3% Manch 2098 2000 eguRy shares of AFT Induisirias
Lig 1% B35 LR
2530 {31 March 2018 : 2530) equity shares of Hindusian
Unbever Lid i 88,15,295 43,718,204
Sulr Todad [A) = 58,935,201 45,03,008
[y Unguoted (at cost)
dl In equiy shares of campanizs
Aszam Bangal Cersals Lid. - Face Value Rs. 100 1,030 1,000
Amiuckia Imvesiments Somgany Lid. - Faoo Value Rs, 10/ 27,681 27,681
Shree Mursing Pepst B 00 Mills P Lid - F Vabos Ra. 105 10,000,000 10,060,000
B} In Unii of Mulual Fund
Uil in Fortune, 34 of Gic Mulesl Fund - Face valus Re, 190~ 1.000 1.000
o} In Governmeni Securitios
Mational Pian Sanrgs Cedilicata 1,000 1,000
Suly Toud [B]= 10,30, 6E1 10, 30,681
Tolsl (A+B) = £9,23,882 56,331,680
T Qther Non Current Assels
Capital Advance 98,00 10 BE.O0, 16D
28,90 160 BB.00, 160
E EHOIDOCal A5 S - 5 ! 3 |
As at Opening dale .50,18 452 T2 4T AT
incrasss-gus (o purchasa/physica changes (MNoto) 63, 10255 52871
Decreases dua to harvestphysical changas (iransfer io PPE) ;Tﬂ,ﬁt,ﬂlﬂ:l (72,57 428)
1,74,74. 802 3,86,18, 482
9  |nventories
Finished goods-Tea (Al lowes of cost and nel realisable value} & FT.00T20 280338
Slodes and spares including pecking maserials [l coat) 8272168 8005, 6680
Foodgraing (&l cost) 1,08, 145 32,615
-I,!E.l!.uﬂ':!ﬂ- 3,70, T, 67E
10 Trade Reseivables (Uosesured, Congidened goods)
Cuis@ndang for @ pened exceeding o mantns fram ifa dale iy arm
due fer paymert B2 455 120,337
Dahied dibils 91,681,593 1,11.08, 743




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Moles on Elnancial Statemanis for the year ended 3158 March, 2020

11

12

13

14

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cagh squsakents
Cash an hand

Batances wih Banes
On Caurrent AccowTs
On Fized Dapcsl | Margn Monoy amount)
{Inchuding @ocnued intareal arogn)

Loans
Curranl
Linsecured, Cansicered good

Other Financial Assets
Gurrant

(Mhees = Advancea Racovarabla from
Unassured, Considered Good

Employeas
Oaheds

Degpogina

De=poaid wilh Tiea Boand
Deposd weth Gt Authonlies
Deposi with Ofhers

Curreni Tax Assets (net)
Others - Advarices Recosvarabia om
Unaecored, Congidersd Good

- Income Tex Refund Rece bbb

Ohiharg - Afvancies Rpcavesahle fram
Urisecuned, Conaiderad Gogd

= Suppliers of Goods & Services

- Balgnce with Cusioms. Excise, Sales Tox, G3T
Prepaid Exponees

s st A ot
Fi-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
74 B ¥.14,000
23.57,789 1280873
17,388,633 16, 26851
44,581,413 6, 24,7353
e R — ]
E31, 0B 5,31, B08
5,311,808 5,131,808
I
85,44 G52 B7. 74,065
&, 51,310 1187 426
2287272 87272
11,9608 11,85, 208
i 87,5 LT
18.09,341 12,069,441
1.83.75,368 "IIB-IJﬂII'H
o8 3T 465 &, 95,747
48,37 456 46,96,T47
50,000,181 & 16,038
4 08, W0d 6,323,681
I 53441 ey
| 55,21,926 74,212,341




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Haotes on Financial Stalemants for the year anded 31t March, 2020 LS A5 al

16.1 Eguity Share Capifal

17

18

3 1-hae-d0 F1-Mar-15

Authorised :
42,00,000 (31 March $019: 42,00,000) 42,000,000 42,00, 200
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscrbaed and pald-up
3B, 14.8440 Equity Shares of Re. 10(- aach ‘i‘ﬂ'L-'l-E.-‘m 3,84,45 400
(31 March-201% 3814540 Ecuily Shanes of Bs. 10 each fully paid up)

i) Mavemenl in equily shara capilal

Qpaening balance 3,81.45, 400 3,81 45,400
Changes in eguily share capial E .
Cioming balance 2,81,45,400 381,45 200

Tarms and rights attached to squity shares
The Gompary has oma clss of eoaily shaie having a pad vales of Rs 10 each] Edch shamhokler is aligibhe far cne
voba pershare held. The dividend proposed by the Breard of Direckors is subjesd b the apprewal of 1ha shangholdars in
tha ansaing Annual General Meeting sxcepl 0 She case of inksrim dnddand. Ik e event of dquidation (he equly
sharaholders aro algitie o recanve the remaining sssais of the Company alar ution of al predfenantial amounis.
in praporkian o thes shameholiding

ifi| Details of shanshalders halding mers hon 53 of igsued, subscribad and paid-up shams

Rajendra Sethia ! a1, 5% HOEo0 4XATH

Wiestern Logistics Py Lig FOR R FEOODS 35 1TH

Trarepower Marketing Prt. Lid BT wEodd [
[

Borrowings

Non-Currant

Gecuned

Tarm Lodng.

From Tea Seard BS.A7T.E33 112,883,811

Leas: Current Matusiies of Long Teim Boromwings 27.04,178 27,061,178

EI.EEII-!E! H.Hlm

Hature of Securities :
Thee pbave lomms ure sevennd by equiiable morigage second chirge mnking poripesim o fixsd msetc e, mmiveabla

Tarms ol Rapaymants ;
The obave lenms [oans are for o period of 13 years beving moratorium oa he principal repoyment for a periog of 5 years.
Principal ta-4o ke repaid in 16 equol Belf venrly instsllments starting from Septembet, 1014, The effective imnenes rate
will be §.914% po payoble monthly IF povment s mode wiihin dse does, mherwite 3% poa. inderest penaliy will be
payable. |

Mon Current
Frowision for Empioves Benelis *.ﬂ.ﬂ&.ﬂii 9,08, 11,505
,ﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁ;: , B,52,00,022 ,06,11,505
DT TR
n o ] 1




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

162 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year srdad 315t March, 2020

Particulars Equatly Shama d
Capital Socurities Retalned Total
Prommium Earmnings
Agcount
Ry Ry i RE A=
A at st Merch, 2018 3,81 46,400 66,000,000 BHZ AT 8T4 648,37 673
Pl (Licgs| tor Eng ¥ear = = 13,018,871y (A01.B3.871)
Orher Comprehensive Incame - 134 52 253) (34 52.252)
Tetal Comprehenshe incoma oo the Year - - L [AAE3E12% (33633 120
As wt 315t March, 20158 3,081,456 400 56,00,000 | ;,EM‘I,H‘ 542,01, 560
Prahl {Loss) for he Yeaar - - 182 627 3,52 927
Oilhar Comgrebansive Incomo . - 36.76,0GT 33, 78,037
Totad Campmhetamye Incomes lar the Yaar - - | 43 2 854 A2 30 BEd
As at st March, 2020 Eli‘l'l'liliﬂ | 9@ 30 518 | i
For Mis. Maroti & Associates
Firm Registration Mo, 322776E i Faor and on tehakl of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanis 3
- o
Mo deoe, \Loptiete, H%‘* Vo - \n.m_r;.;u Juanls® 9@"‘"&
Madan Kumar Maroti =<2 ) nishka Sethia |
Pariner Wy Chalrman E.L Baid Hhushbao
Mombaership Bo. DETOTI o e Managing Direclar DIHH'.*:F Coampany Secratary

Datn : 30th HH), Hotksia Ds-00287 232 DIN-00278136 CP Mo.AJEG42
T




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

19 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Slgnificant components and movement in Deforred Tax Assets and |..|l|#“‘ﬁﬂl during the year,

Deferred Tax Liabilities recognized through ©C1

Financial Assets at Fair Yalue through O8G0
Defarrad Tax Liabllities

Net Deferred Tax Liabilitios

Deferred Tax Liabilitics recognized through GCI

Financist Assets at Fair Watee through SGI
Doferred Tax Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax Liakiliies

As at3ist Recognised  As at 31st

March, 2019 inOCI  March, 2020
855718 264801 1120817
E55718 2.64.901 11.20817
856,716 11,20,617
A=z 4t 18t Recognised As al 3ist

April. 2018 InOGI March, 2019
GoD452 165284 8,558,716
590452  1.66.264 B.55.718
5,00 452 B.55,716



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Hotes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

23

Borrowings
Current
Sacured
Laans repayable on demand
Fram Harks - Working Capital Loan

Unsecured

Loan regayabés an demand
From Redatad Pasties - Unsacured
Fiowm Ofhers - Linsecuned

Frafarance Snhare Canital

&% Réadesmable Non Cumulative Praterance Share
E% Redeemabie Non Comulative Preferance Share
5% Radesmable Non Cumulative Praferance Shans
3% Radeamable Mon Cumalative Preferance SEhare

Irade Payable
Taktal Dulstandirg dues of creditors olhar than Micro & Small
Ermemprisas

Dther Fi ial Liabiliti
Curreni

Currend Maturilies of long term dabd (Fy-185-20) *
Currand Maturiies of long s debd (FY-20-21)

Az al Bgat

Ji-Mar-30 31-Mar-18
4 BQ AQ 1 3F 4 .48 89 384
15.26,63,913 11.58.75,008
& 58 AT BAG 78788155
4 1B 87 000 218 87.000
TO00,000 T 00, 000
&40 00,000 & 4 00, 006
FBE 00, 000 2 55,100,000
30,08 40,724 36,15,19 520
483,30, 387 301,300,732
2.83,30,367 3,04,30,732
728,031 27T

20T -
34,30,210 2709179

*Mole  This amount was due e mepaymant o tbe monh of March 2020, hmmmrnﬂ; clue 1o lockdawn, the peyman

was made an 1507 E020

Other Liabilities
Cusrrant

Statutary aues
Other Payables

Provisions
Curremnt
Pravigian baf Emploves Banafts

70.02.187 2,86, 53,400

74 65,241 1,08, 50532
1,608,657 428 1,85,33,832

| 2 19,07, 769 1,54,11,232
219,07, 768 1,54.11,232




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Maotes on Einancial Siaternents for the year cnded 318t March, 2020

25

ki3

Revenusg ration
Sale of Product
Saia of Tea

Others
Sale of Scrap
Sale of Log

Othar

Migcallanaois Roowipls
Caommissian Recaivad
Enterest Recaved

Toa Board Sulbsdy

Forelgn Ezchange Gair
Inswrapce Claim

Cividiared Incarme

- From Long Tarm Invesimeant

Cost of Matorial Consumed

Purchase of Green Leafs

n in i ini
Stock of Tea at the beginning o tha year
Less : Siook of Tea al ihe end of the yaar

[Imcreass] | Decrease

Employea Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonug
Comributian 1 P_F. end Othar Funds
Workrman and Siaff Wellare Expengas

Finance Cost

Interesi Expense
g Bark Cyoriraf
B SFTF Tam Loan
on Others

Cthar Bomowing Costs

iation an
Dopreciaion on Tanghbie Asgats

ods

ot i Ra )
Az at Asal
W-Mar-20 31-Mar-18
25,50, 71,626 22.68,36,331
1.77.284 -
8,50, 048 -
26,66,99,126 22,68,38,331
| 342,342 411,670
20010572 11,568,068
120,869 1,33, 7H0
= 4049716
33,631 L5, BES
35,388 -
30,710 3380
: 2.95,73,812 58.40,184
£ 831,075 .
5 §,83,975 c
2,890,373 591 20203553
427,00, 73 2.90,33. %01
{1,38.68,720) {B8,30,038)
15,4338, 142 13,08,70,612
25827 48T 2751 5683

o2 70,367 07 59,842

} 18,35,36,7 34 168,77, 31 444
43,111,208 43 55 349

9,42 781 12,58 782

7 58,508 218,114,771

19,180 19,180

N [ . M {115

| 9103 541

02 68,935



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Hotes on Financial Statemants for the year ended 318t March, 2020

3z

Other Expenses
Corsumplion of Slores and Sgare Parts
Power angd Fuel
Repairs
- Busding
- MAachirery
= Oithors
Fremghl, Bokarage and Ciher Salling Expenses
vighicle Expanses
Reles and Taxes
Rent
Insuranca
Filirg Feas
Direciors’ Ramunaralion
faditars' Remunaration
Miscsllansous Expensas

Larmourd in R}
As &t As al

1 31-Mar20 31-Mar-19
1,63 29473 1.38,22 952
3,54.68,110 3,20,87,455
17,74,085 12,548,833
47,27,703 44,04.597
3,00,480 2,786,978
73,608,789 81,46.199
31,04, 859 24,64.358
1,38,034 1,867,753
6,896,000 i, 98, 000
3,04, 557 356,680
37,300 23,900
4,20,000 4,20,000
80,000 70,000
43,009,650 47,16.833
| 1.37.60,010 6,70,43,858



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Motes on Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

33. Additional Notes to the Financial Statements

331 Conbinges fabilities and commitments 2019-2020 2018-2019

Rs Rs

Contirgent liabilities

i} Claims agains! the Company not scknowledged as debls:
Incorme Tax demand undar appeal 12,28 660 12,289,660

i) Bank Guaranlas 48,48 865 45 48 860

33.2 Eamings pershare
Earmings per shira Res bean
Computed as under ;
{a} Profivi{Lose) for the year/period 3,52 827 (30183871

&)y Welghted average number of Ordinany shares oulsianding
for te purpoee of basis/diluted eamings per sharaiMos) 3B14540 14540

{c) Easnang par share on profit for

The yearperisd (Face Value B 100 per share

- Basis and Diluted [{a)t)] 0,09 {7.81)
313 Employes Benafit Pians:

| & jDefined Contribution Plans

The Company cperales defined contribulion schemes for provident io the Providani Fund consiituied by
the government of Indie for all gualifying employees. For this schome, conbributions are made by the
Company, basad on current salarias . Tha Company does nol have any kabilily 1owarde Provident Fund to the
ampioyaes apar from i contribalion.

An amount of Rs 1,82 438688k (2019 - R% 1,632,650 776, | has been changed 1o the Statemant of Profit and
Loss on accoun of dafined contribulions schames

b} Defined Benclit Plans

The Campany makes payment o amployeas for thes Grabety upon the ratiremant. However, liability for tha
wear has been provided in the books of sccounts as per actuanal vasustion report

(o) Leave Ohligation

The Company provedes for accumulation of leave by cartain ca!nguﬁu: of it ermployeas. These employess
can carry forvard a porion of the unufilised leave badances and ull i1 in luture periods or recelve cash
{only in case of eamed leave] In ey thereof as per the Company'd palicy, The Company records & provision
for leave obligations in the period in which the emplayee renders ihe = es that increases this entitlement

Aist March, 2020 1600304
3tst March, 2019 1627885
st March, 2013 2340333




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

The ameun of the provision is presentad as curent, since the Company doas nol have an uncondiional right
to defar sattioment for any of these obfigations. However. basad on pist expenence, the Company does nok
expect &l employees o 1ake the full amount of acsrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months.
The following amaunts reflect leave that is not expected 10 be tzkan orpaid within (he net 12 monihs.

Disclosure relating to Employee Benefit —Gratuity

in Pregs
2015-2020 2018-2019
Presant Wakse of Obligelions & tha begining of the year 10,44 85 052 B, 7547 003
Inimrest Cosl 80.46.118 87,22, 830
Currani Service Cost &5 65 641 51,78.3T6
Bensfia pabd {2.731515) 4,75 0856)
Remeasurements Lesses
Remaasurgments - Due 10 Financial assumptions 48,656,323 4 8@ 232
Remeasuramiants - Due 10 Expanance sdpstmants (71.82,143) 50,685,665
Achunrial gainioss
Present Valua of obdgalion end of the year 11,55 07 482 10,44 05 G652
Statement of Liability to the Fund
Praserd Value of abligation ai the yaar end 11,6507 482 - 10,44,95.002
Feir value of Plan Asgel af the year end s o
peet Ligbility 1o the Fund 11,5607 482  10.44,55,052
Expanses for the year
Currenl Senvice Gost 65,65 641 61.78,3748
Inbereat Cosl HO 46,119 67 22,830
Remessuraments Logses
Remeasurements - Due to Financal assumptons 48,568,328 4. 56252
Remeazurements - Due to Experignce adjusiments (71,82 143) 50,665,665
1.12,85,845 1,74.23 105
Discount Rale T.00% 7700
Inflation Rate &% 6%
Retsm on Asgal NA NA

334 In absence of any specific information evailable with the company in respect of any suppliel attracting

provisions of the Micro, Small &nd Medium Enterprises Development Adt, 2008, no disclosure treatment as

per Act has been considenad necesasry.

Segment Information

335 The Company is engaged in the business of cultivation, manulachunng, sale and frading in tea and therefore,
according ko the managemand this is a Single Segment Company. ‘



WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Motes on Financlial Statements for the year ended 313t March, 2020

34 Related Party Disclosures in accordance with requirement of AS-18

I. List of Related Parlies

iy Ky Managamen! Persanngl - Bir. Kanishka Sethig
i) Relatve of Key Manageman! Personnel - Mr. Raenda Sethia
fii} Corrpany. In which Director/relative of Direclor ware significant infuencefcontnol axsts

Funal Resgurces Pl Lid.
Wiastern Logestcs Pl Lid

‘Wastem Warahgusing Py, Lid.

Gipsy Manageran] Fyi, Lid
Sugcess Suppbers Pyl Lid,
Wiestern Carriers {India) Lid

Wastarn Herbicides Pyl Lid.

I, Tran=action with Related Partles

2019-2020 2018-2018
Dirgctor Remuneration
Hanishka Sethia 4,20,000 4,20, 000
Purchage of Chemical
‘Westarn Herbicides Pyl Lid, 1.05,83 842 1,05,66 004
Intgrest Paid (Recgived)
Gipsy Managermenl Pyl Lid, - 11,532,952
Kanishka Sabhia - 865 522
Kunal Resources Pyt, Lid, 565453 &,12.404
Rajendra Sothia - 1.50,168
Succass Suppliors Pyvi, Lid, 04, 2B0
Weslem Carners (India) Lid. - A3,45.381
YWihslemn Lopglsies Pl Lid, 568777
Weslarn Warehousing Pt Lid - =35, 342
beran Taken
Gipsy Management Pvl Lid 15.00,000 33, 00, 000
Funal Resources Pyt Lid, - 30,000,000
Fajendra Sethia . £5,00,000
Weslem Camers (Indig) Lid, 3,59, 55 000 BE 00,000
Weslem Loglstcs Pyl Lid. 45,00, 000 20,00, 000
Lean Refunded! given
Gipsy Managenent Pyt, Lid. 825,000 .
Kantzhka Sethia 45 50,000 -
Kunal Resources Pyl Lid - 30,001,000
Rajendra Sethia - 14,530,000
Westenn Carriers (India) Lid. 50,00,000
Westom Warehousing Pyl Lid 5,00,000
Batanca at vaar End Crl {0r)
Gipsy Mansgermanl Put. Lid 15947 245 153,72 248
Kanishka Sethia 48 64,180 84,34,750
Kunal Rosousces Pyl Lid 6163 435 56.54, 527
Rajendra Seihia 17.16,333 17,168,333
Bucoess Suppliers Pyl Lid, 10,268,740 10,28, 740
Wigsbern Carriors {India) Lid. T,?'E.EE.SI!-H 417,01, 546
Westarn Logistics Py, Lid 4 B2 BE 423 4,07 65,423
Westarn VWarehousing Pyl Lid - {6.31.808) {5.31.808)
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Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

1. Capital Managemant

The Company aims af mamtaming a sirong capdal basp maximizing shaeholders wealkh safegquarding Business conbnuily and

augmenrts &5 imeonal genedations with a judcious use of bomewing faclilies ta spiues in working capital thad arss fram lirs 1o

firrea ma wall as requiremants bo Pnance blssness growth

2. Categories of Financial Insirumants

Parfcubes ke a3t March 2020 Az al 31 March 2018

Furr'plng el Camying Vaiua

A Fieancial Assls

al Magswmd at amarilsod cost

| Men Guarent
Il Invasimanis. Poooeabod Eharas B B0 BT fL-%- ]

|CumrEnk
1 Torade [Fedhadlbe 1o BE G4 040 113, 5% 060
¥y Cash and Cash Eguralants Tl AE #1413 M
H} Loang (1] BL31.808 o0 0
w1 Cthar Curmor Finandal Assais 11 1837580 1,00 40,80
Bub - total J ALY 318 332457188

L) Mipwsred ol Pair value through Oiber Comprehensia ncomae
0 Imasstmaonis. Ouisd Shanes £ B B3 #5000 00s
Sub - total 8E51,701 44,03,009
Total Financial zss4s

B Francal kabines

&) Mansurod sk amonised cost

Han Current
) Borrowings 17 53,0453 AT g

Currenl
i Bermwings n 585 A, T2 3,16 76 53R
H) Traga Payablag H 730,307 ADEI0TIZ
) i Cumess Finengaal Liabiils 7 2 e e e T
Total fimsncial Fabilitgs | 252 AT TE4 40393811

3. Financlal risk managemant objectivas

The Company's sclivitias exposs | 109 vanety of financial rsks, ncluding risk, cradit fsk and liqudiy sk The Company

conbinues i fosus on @ sysbam-basad aparoach o business sk managemarnt. 1

Company's francial rsk management protass

socks b ongbie the early Kenlfication, evelualion and effective management of key nsks facing the business. Backed by strong
Inarnal Sonbiod sysisms. the current Risk Managemant System rosts on policies|and procedures issued by appropriale authorites,

prooass of nequilar mevieres [ audils bo ged apprapdiate ngk limids and comtrols: m
far the samea

8] Marke risk

insburment wil Nucluate bocause of adveme wedlher candiions and kack of

ttorimg of guch rsks and compliance confirmaton

na markats, The Comgany Cossy montbors tha

The Companys busiress pirmarly agicuBural in nabura, exposes il o the H“EEH fair wahie ar fubure cath lows of a Bnancial

changes in market condiians and salect the sales sirategles o miate L8 eapo

I. Foraign currency sk
The Company undatkes trarsactans denominabed in fam@gn curency which
rale figk prmasily orises Fom fransackons made in fgreign exchange and selne

Lo risk.

ulls i exchangs rale Sucluations. Such mmhange
né risks ansing from recognised asseds and

habiities, which @ nol in the Compamy's functional cumeney (indian Rupses). & significant podion of these transachions am in US

Cealiar

Foraign currency sansdbivity

The impact of sensitivily anefysis arising on accourt of oulslangeg Freign cumency danominsted assets and fabiities &

mlgrlﬁiirlt s, i




WESTERN CONGLOMERATE LIMITED

Motea on Finaneial Statemoents for the year anded 318t March, 2020

L Interest rafo risk
Inberest rate nsk refiers 1o the sk that the Talr value o fulune cash Nlows of a fin
markat intanas rotes. Thi obfeclives of the Campany's inforest rate fish manage

ial msirumant will fluchuate Decause of changes n
rl proceases are (o lessan the impact of sdverss

inlerest rabe movaments on is earrings and &sh flows and io minimese counter party risks

b} Liguidity rizk

Ligruidity risk is tho rsa that ihe Gompeny may afcounter dificully including sedsohally in meefng fis obligations,

The Compeny miigales s luidity rsks by ensuing imely colisclions of is tade mesivables, cloae morloring of its credit cycls

ard enswing colimal mavemants of is nvarlcriea

o] Gradil gk
Credif righi Ip the fak thal counber party wil not maed ils abilgations (sading ta a fn

The Company tas its palicies 1o imi 88 sxpoasise b credit rick arising from cu
ihe credi qualty of s customed's Bass which, the serms of paymend are decided
reaewed on porodc intervals. The credit rsk of the Cormparry is low os the C

neial ices

riding receivables. Management regulary assess
Credit imiis are sad for @ach customes which ane
mRany angaly seils s eas hrough the awcton

sysiam which & on cash ond canry Dasss and through sxpants which sne mosty badked by lelter or credit or on advance basls,

Tra financsal risk assccaled to sgriciltune would include climabta change, price NucluaSan, curancy fluctuadion and Inpat cost

increases. Boirg copandent on rainfall, any shocllall woukl. Fecily impact the
aucticn syelet, any priog luctuation wauld impact profiletilky. Incressed wages
becduse of @bour inbensha natura af the business cpemtions

Managmment & conlifucusly monilonng all the above feciors. Investmeni n inl
highir yaids and mprovieg efesency of Bhour and medesmisslion are some of §
ihe risks

uction, The sale of tee baing Ergely ihraugh 1ha
Iras B direc! mpacd on the cost of production

lign;, & planned replanting programema [0 ensune
maasdres leken by the management to mitioats

For Mis. Marot & Aspoe|mles
Firm Registration No. 3221708 _— 3.5 ¢
Chartarad Agcountants — -"

Farand on bahalf of the Board of Directors

Aran “L‘:“ - )
Mocas o MO2RE (G~ e g Wﬁ“‘%’
Madan Kumar Maroti -__\ F s Kanighka Sathia
Partner P ,/ Chaloman KL Baid Khushboo Saraf
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